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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2012

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from              to             

Commission File Number 1-13754

THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 04-3263626
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
440 Lincoln Street, Worcester, Massachusetts 01653
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(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(508) 855-1000

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days.    Yesx    No¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer ¨  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant�s common stock was 45,038,404 as of May 1, 2012.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions, except per share data) 2012 2011

REVENUES

Premiums $ 1,035.6 $ 761.7
Net investment income 68.8 60.4
Net realized investment gains (losses):
Net realized gains from sales and other 5.0 4.7
Net other�than�temporary impairment losses on investments recognized in earnings (1.9) (1.4) 

Total net realized investment gains 3.1 3.3

Fees and other income 14.3 8.4

Total revenues 1,121.8 833.8

LOSSES AND EXPENSES

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 661.4 511.0
Policy acquisition expenses 228.1 162.5
Interest expense 16.2 10.4
Other operating expenses 145.3 112.4

Total losses and expenses 1,051.0 796.3

Income before income taxes 70.8 37.5

Income tax expense (benefit):
Current 39.0 4.1
Deferred (18.9) 5.5

Total income tax expense 20.1 9.6

Income from continuing operations 50.7 27.9
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations (net of income tax benefit of $0.1 and $0.3) (1.0) 1.4

Net income $ 49.7 $ 29.3

PER SHARE DATA
Basic
Income from continuing operations $ 1.13 $ 0.62
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations (0.02) 0.03
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Net income per share $ 1.11 $ 0.65

Weighted average shares outstanding 44.9 45.3

Diluted
Income from continuing operations $ 1.11 $ 0.61
Net gain (loss) from discontinued operations (0.02) 0.03

Net income per share $ 1.09 $ 0.64

Weighted average shares outstanding 45.5 46.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Net income $ 49.7 $ 29.3

Other comprehensive income:
Available-for-sale securities:
Net appreciation during the period 63.6 0.2
Portion of other-than-temporary impairment losses transferred from other comprehensive income 4.6 3.3
(Provision) benefit for deferred income taxes (24.3) 3.1

Total available-for-sale securities 43.9 6.6

Pension and postretirement benefits:
Amortization recognized as net periodic benefit costs:
Net actuarial loss 3.2 3.9
Prior service cost (0.9) (1.3) 

Total amortization recognized as net periodic benefit costs 2.3 2.6
Provision for deferred income taxes (0.8) (0.9) 

Total pension and postretirement benefits 1.5 1.7

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment:
Amount recognized as cumulative foreign currency translation during the period 14.3 -   
Provision for deferred income taxes (5.0) -   

Total cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment 9.3 -   

Other comprehensive income 54.7 8.3

Comprehensive income $ 104.4 $ 37.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)

(in millions, except per share data)
March 31,

2012
December 31,

2011

ASSETS

Investments:
Fixed maturities, at fair value (amortized cost of $6,141.2 and $6,008.7) $ 6,470.6 $ 6,284.7
Equity securities, at fair value (cost of $315.5 and $239.9) 334.1 246.4
Other investments 212.8 190.2

Total investments 7,017.5 6,721.3

Cash and cash equivalents 628.3 820.4
Accrued investment income 71.2 71.8
Premiums and accounts receivable, net 1,223.9 1,168.1
Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses and unearned premiums 2,431.8 2,262.2
Deferred policy acquisition costs 468.0 458.6
Deferred income taxes 265.8 274.0
Goodwill 184.4 185.5
Other assets 496.0 515.5
Assets of discontinued operations 126.5 121.2

Total assets $ 12,913.4 $ 12,598.6

LIABILITIES

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves $ 5,827.3 $ 5,760.3
Unearned premiums 2,363.4 2,292.1
Expenses and taxes payable 613.8 642.9
Reinsurance premiums payable 484.1 378.9
Debt 918.1 911.1
Liabilities of discontinued operations 127.7 129.3

Total liabilities 10,334.4 10,114.6

Commitments and contingencies

SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 20.0 million shares authorized, none issued -   -   
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300.0 million shares authorized, $60.5 million shares issued 0.6 0.6
Additional paid-in capital 1,780.1 1,784.8
Accumulated other comprehensive income 265.1 210.4
Retained earnings 1,248.8 1,211.3
Treasury stock, at cost (15.8 and 15.9 million shares) (715.6) (723.1) 

Total shareholders� equity 2,579.0 2,484.0

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 12,913.4 $ 12,598.6
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

PREFERRED STOCK

Balance at beginning and end of period $ -     $ -     

COMMON STOCK

Balance at beginning and end of period 0.6 0.6

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

Balance at beginning of period 1,784.8 1,796.5
Employee and director stock-based awards and other (4.7) (16.5) 

Balance at end of period 1,780.1 1,780.0

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

NET UNREALIZED APPRECIATION ON INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS:

Balance at beginning of period 308.7 218.3
Net appreciation during the period:
Net appreciation on available-for-sale securities and derivative instruments 68.2 3.5
Benefit (provision) for deferred income taxes (24.3) 3.1

43.9 6.6

Balance at end of period 352.6 224.9

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT PLANS:
Balance at beginning of period (86.8) (81.6) 
Amount recognized as net periodic benefit cost during the period 2.3 2.6
Provision for deferred income taxes (0.8) (0.9) 

1.5 1.7

Balance at end of period (85.3) (79.9) 

CUMULATIVE FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT:
Balance at beginning of period (11.5) -     
Amount recognized as cumulative foreign currency translation during the period 14.3 -     
Provision for deferred income taxes (5.0) -     

9.3 -     

Balance at end of period (2.2) -     
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Total accumulated other comprehensive income 265.1 145.0

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at beginning of period 1,211.3 1,246.8
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes -     (23.1) 

Balance at beginning of period, as adjusted 1,211.3 1,223.7
Net income 49.7 29.3
Dividends to shareholders (13.5) (12.5) 
Treasury stock issued for less than cost (3.0) (5.6) 
Recognition of employee stock-based compensation 4.3 9.4

Balance at end of period 1,248.8 1,244.3

TREASURY STOCK

Balance at beginning of period (723.1) (720.1) 
Net shares reissued at cost under employee stock-based compensation plans 7.5 15.8

Balance at end of period (715.6) (704.3) 

Total shareholders� equity $ 2,579.0 $ 2,465.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 49.7 $ 29.3
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Loss from retirement of debt -   2.5
Net realized investment gains (2.3) (2.9) 
Net amortization and depreciation 9.1 4.2
Stock-based compensation expense 4.1 3.6
Amortization of deferred benefit plan costs 2.3 2.6
Deferred income taxes (18.9) 5.6
Change in deferred acquisition costs (9.4) 5.4
Change in premiums receivable, net of reinsurance premiums payable 49.3 15.5
Change in loss, loss adjustment expense and unearned premium reserves 138.8 25.8
Change in reinsurance recoverable (167.9) (14.4) 
Change in expenses and taxes payable (28.2) (64.5) 
Other, net (13.9) 11.5

Net cash provided by operating activities 12.7 24.2

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposals and maturities of fixed maturities 550.9 283.1
Proceeds from disposals of equity securities and other investments 2.6 0.7
Purchases of fixed maturities (663.0) (304.5) 
Purchases of equity securities and other investments (98.4) (14.7) 
Capital expenditures (3.2) (2.1) 

Net cash used in investing activities (211.1) (37.5) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 1.1 3.9
Proceeds from debt borrowings 7.4 3.0
Change in collateral related to securities lending program (7.8) (3.8) 
Dividends paid to shareholders (13.5) (12.5) 
Repurchases of debt (0.8) (50.5) 
Other financing activities (0.2) (0.6) 

Net cash used in financing activities (13.8) (60.5) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 20.1 -   

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (192.1) (73.8) 
Net change in cash related to discontinued operations -   2.2
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 820.4 290.4

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 628.3 $ 218.8
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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THE HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1. Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of The Hanover Insurance Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (�THG� or the �Company�)
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�) for interim
financial information and with the requirements of Form 10-Q. Certain financial information that is provided in annual financial statements, but
is not required in interim reports, has been omitted.

The interim consolidated financial statements of THG include the accounts of The Hanover Insurance Company (�Hanover Insurance�) and
Citizens Insurance Company of America, THG�s principal U.S. domiciled property and casualty companies; Chaucer Holdings plc (�Chaucer�), a
specialist underwriting group which operates through the Society and Corporation of Lloyd�s (�Lloyd�s�) and certain other insurance and
non-insurance subsidiaries. These legal entities conduct their operations through several business segments discussed in Note 9 � �Segment
Information�. The acquisition of Chaucer on July 1, 2011, which has added meaningful business volumes to THG results, has affected the
comparability of the interim consolidated financial statements and related footnotes. Results of operations for the three months ended March 31,
2012 include results from all of the Company�s business segments. Results of operations for the comparable period in 2011 do not include any
results of Chaucer. Additionally, the interim consolidated financial statements include the Company�s discontinued operations, consisting of the
Company�s former life insurance businesses and its accident and health business. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

In the opinion of the Company�s management, the accompanying interim consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of
normal recurring items, necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations. The results of operations for the three
months ended March 31, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. These financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the Company�s 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) on
February 29, 2012.

2. New Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Implemented Standards

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2011-08 (Topic 350) Testing Goodwill for Impairment. This ASC update allows an entity
to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test. The update
provides that an entity would not be required to calculate the fair value of a reporting unit unless the entity determines, based on its qualitative
assessment, that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less than its carrying amount. The update further improves previous guidance by
expanding upon the examples of events and circumstances that an entity should consider in determining whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Also, the update improves the examples of events and circumstances that should
be considered by an entity that has a reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount in determining whether to measure an impairment
loss, if any, under the second step of the goodwill impairment test. This ASC update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2011, with early adoption permitted. The Company implemented this guidance effective January 1, 2012. The effect of
implementing this guidance was not material to the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2011-05 (Topic 220) Presentation of Comprehensive Income (�ASC Update No. 2011-05�). This
ASC update requires companies to present net income and other comprehensive income in either a single continuous statement or in two
separate, but consecutive, statements of income and other comprehensive income. The option to present items of other comprehensive income in
the statement of changes in equity is eliminated. In addition, an entity is required to present on the face of the financial statements
reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive income to net income. This ASC update should be applied retrospectively and except for
the provisions related to reclassification adjustment, is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. In December
2011, the FASB issued ASC Update 2011-12 (Topic 220) Comprehensive Income which deferred the implementation date of the reclassification
adjustment guidance in ASC Update No. 2011-05. The Company implemented the guidance related to financial statements presentation effective
January 1, 2012. The effect of implementing the guidance related to financial statements presentation did not have a significant impact to the
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2011-04 (Topic 820) Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and
Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. This ASC update results in a consistent definition of fair value and common requirements
for measurement of and disclosure about fair value for both U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�). The new
guidance includes changes to how and when the valuation premise of highest and best use applies, clarification on the application of blockage
factors and other premiums and discounts, as well as new and revised disclosure requirements. This ASC update is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company implemented this guidance as of January 1, 2012. The effect of implementing
this guidance was not material to the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

In October 2010, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2010-26 (Topic 944), Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing
Insurance Contracts (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). This ASC update provides clarity in defining which costs relating
to the acquisition of new or renewal insurance contracts qualify for deferral, commonly known as deferred acquisition costs. Additionally, this
update specifies that only costs associated with the successful acquisition of a policy or contract may be deferred, whereas industry practice
historically included costs relating to unsuccessful contract acquisition. This ASC is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2011. Retrospective application to all prior periods upon the date of adoption is permitted. The Company implemented this guidance effective
January 1, 2012 and has elected to apply this guidance retrospectively. Retrospective application requires the new accounting principle to be
reflected in the earliest period presented as if the accounting principle had always been used. The Company has reflected the impact of the
retrospective application as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle through equity at the beginning of the earliest reporting
period presented within this Form 10 � Q and will reflect this application in all future filings with the SEC. The implementation of this ASC
resulted in an after-tax reduction to our stockholders� equity as of January 1, 2012 of $25.8 million, or 1%. The effect of implementing this
guidance was not material to our results of operations on either a historical or prospective basis.

3. Acquisitions

Chaucer Acquisition

On July 1, 2011, the Company acquired Chaucer, a United Kingdom (�U.K.�) insurance business. Chaucer is a leading specialist managing agency
at Lloyd�s. Chaucer underwrites business in several lines of business, including property, marine and aviation, energy, U.K. motor and casualty
and other coverages (which include international liability, specialist coverages, and syndicate participations). Chaucer is headquartered in
London, with a regional presence in Whitstable, England and locations in Houston, Singapore, Buenos Aires, and Copenhagen.

This transaction is expected to advance the Company�s specialty lines strategy and result in broader product and underwriting capabilities, as well
as greater geographic and product diversification. The acquisition adds a presence in the Lloyd�s market, which includes access to international
licenses, an excess and surplus insurance business and the ability to syndicate certain risks.

Pro Forma Results

The following unaudited pro forma information presents the combined revenues, net income and net income per share of THG and Chaucer for
the three months ended March 31, 2011, with pro forma purchase accounting adjustments as if the acquisition had been consummated as of
January 1, 2011. This pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred had the acquisition and related
transactions been made on January 1, 2011, or of future results of the Company. The Company�s income statement accounts denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to U.S. dollars at the average rates of exchange for the period indicated.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions, except per share data) 2011

Revenue $ 1,067.5 
Net income (loss) $ (25.5)
Net income (loss) per share - basic $ (0.56)
Net income (loss) per share - diluted $ (0.56)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 45.3 
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 45.3 
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Other

The Company recognized approximately $2.0 million in net foreign currency transaction gains in the Statement of Income during the three
months ended March 31, 2012.

4. Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 has been computed using estimated effective tax rates. These rates are
revised, if necessary, at the end of each successive interim period to reflect current estimates of the annual effective tax rates.

For the three months ended March 31, 2012, the tax provision is comprised of a $12.1 million U.S. federal income tax expense and $8.0 million
foreign income tax expense. For the three months ended March 31, 2011, the tax provision was comprised of a $9.6 million U.S. federal income
tax expense.

Certain of the Company�s non-U.S. income is not subject to U.S. tax until repatriated. Foreign taxes on this non � U.S. income are accrued at the
local foreign tax rate, as opposed to the higher U.S. statutory tax rate, since these earnings currently are expected to be permanently reinvested
overseas. This assumption could change, as a result of a sale of the subsidiaries, the receipt of dividends from the subsidiaries, a change in
management�s intentions, or as a result of various other events. For the three months ended March 31, 2012, all of the Company�s non � US income
is subject to U.S. tax.

The Company or its subsidiaries files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions, as well as foreign
jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2007. The Company and its subsidiaries are still subject to U.S. state income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years after 2001 and foreign examinations for years after 2008.

9
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5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The components of net periodic pension cost for defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans included in the Company�s results
of operations are as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,
(in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Service cost � benefits earned during the period $ 0.4 $ -   $ -   $ -   
Interest cost 8.8 7.9 0.5 0.6
Expected return on plan assets (9.7) (8.5) -   -   
Recognized net actuarial loss 3.2 3.8 -   0.1
Amortization of prior service cost -   -   (0.9) (1.3) 

Net periodic cost (benefit) $ 2.7 $ 3.2 $ (0.4) $ (0.6) 

10
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6. Investments

A. Fixed maturities and equity securities

The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale fixed maturities and the cost and fair value of equity securities were as follows:

March 31, 2012

(in millions)

Amortized
Cost or

Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value

OTTI
Unrealized

Losses

Fixed maturities:
U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 224.4 $ 6.9 $ 0.3 $ 231.0 $ -   
Foreign government 273.3 0.6 0.1 273.8 -   
Municipal 933.3 74.6 2.9 1,005.0 -   
Corporate 3,345.9 218.4 18.7 3,545.6 10.6
Residential mortgage-backed 778.1 40.7 7.4 811.4 5.7
Commercial mortgage-backed 373.1 14.6 0.3 387.4 -   
Asset-backed 213.1 4.3 1.0 216.4 -   

Total fixed maturities $ 6,141.2 $ 360.1 $ 30.7 $ 6,470.6 $ 16.3

Equity securities $ 315.5 $ 25.5 $ 6.9 $ 334.1 $ -   

December 31, 2011
Amortized

Cost or
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value

OTTI
Unrealized

Losses

Fixed maturities:
U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 261.7 $ 7.8 $ 0.2 $ 269.3 $ -   
Foreign government 239.1 0.4 0.5 239.0 -   
Municipal 964.5 67.4 3.9 1,028.0 -   
Corporate 3,218.2 197.7 40.3 3,375.6 13.8
Residential mortgage-backed 816.1 40.9 8.4 848.6 6.1
Commercial mortgage-backed 367.6 12.5 1.0 379.1 -   
Asset-backed 141.5 4.3 0.7 145.1 -   

Total fixed maturities $ 6,008.7 $ 331.0 $ 55.0 $ 6,284.7 $ 19.9

Equity securities $ 239.9 $ 15.3 $ 8.8 $ 246.4 $ -   

Other-than-temporary impairments (�OTTI�) unrealized losses in the tables above represent OTTI recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income. This amount excludes net unrealized gains on impaired securities relating to changes in the value of such securities subsequent to the
impairment measurement date of $25.6 million and $25.1 million as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

The amortized cost and fair value by maturity periods for fixed maturities are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties, or the Company may
have the right to put or sell the obligations back to the issuers.
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(in millions) March 31, 2012

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Due in one year or less $ 441.4 $ 446.2
Due after one year through five years 2,092.0 2,188.4
Due after five years through ten years 1,592.2 1,720.2
Due after ten years 651.3 700.6

4,776.9 5,055.4
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities 1,364.3 1,415.2

Total fixed maturities $ 6,141.2 $ 6,470.6

11
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B. Securities in an unrealized loss position

The following tables provide information about the Company�s fixed maturities and equity securities that were in an unrealized loss position at
March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

March 31, 2012

12 months or less
Greater than 12

months Total

(in millions)

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Fixed maturities:
Investment grade:
U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 0.3 $ 42.2 $ -   $ -   $ 0.3 $ 42.2
Foreign governments 0.1 74.2 -   -   0.1 74.2
Municipal 0.5 21.9 2.4 42.2 2.9 64.1
Corporate 4.6 364.8 4.7 32.6 9.3 397.4
Residential mortgage-backed 4.6 52.4 2.0 13.9 6.6 66.3
Commercial mortgage-backed 0.1 24.3 0.2 4.8 0.3 29.1
Asset-backed 0.4 56.3 -   -   0.4 56.3

Total investment grade 10.6 636.1 9.3 93.5 19.9 729.6
Below investment grade:
Corporate 7.4 93.3 2.0 12.4 9.4 105.7
Residential mortgage-backed 0.8 16.4 -   -   0.8 16.4
Asset-backed 0.6 1.0 -   -   0.6 1.0

Total below investment grade 8.8 110.7 2.0 12.4 10.8 123.1

Total fixed maturities 19.4 746.8 11.3 105.9 30.7 852.7

Equity securities 6.5 88.6 0.4 10.6 6.9 99.2

Total $ 25.9 $ 835.4 $ 11.7 $ 116.5 $ 37.6 $ 951.9

December 31, 2011

12 months or less
Greater than 12

months Total

(in millions)

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Fixed maturities:
Investment grade:
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U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 0.2 $ 57.7 $ -   $ -   $ 0.2 $ 57.7
Foreign governments 0.5 148.8 -   -   0.5 148.8
Municipal 0.5 28.0 3.4 58.8 3.9 86.8
Corporate 19.9 699.6 8.2 35.6 28.1 735.2
Residential mortgage-backed 5.1 115.8 2.4 9.9 7.5 125.7
Commercial mortgage-backed 0.7 58.0 0.3 4.6 1.0 62.6
Asset-backed 0.2 67.6 -   -   0.2 67.6

Total investment grade 27.1 1,175.5 14.3 108.9 41.4 1,284.4

Below investment grade:
Corporate 8.5 118.0 3.7 14.7 12.2 132.7
Residential mortgage-backed 0.9 8.0 -   -   0.9 8.0
Asset-backed 0.5 0.9 -   -   0.5 0.9

Total below investment grade 9.9 126.9 3.7 14.7 13.6 141.6

Total fixed maturities 37.0 1,302.4 18.0 123.6 55.0 1,426.0

Equity securities 8.8 87.2 -   -   8.8 87.2

Total $ 45.8 $ 1,389.6 $ 18.0 $ 123.6 $ 63.8 $ 1,513.2
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The Company employs a systematic methodology to evaluate declines in fair value below amortized cost for fixed maturity securities or cost for
equity securities. In determining OTTI of fixed maturity and equity securities, the Company evaluates several factors and circumstances,
including the issuer�s overall financial condition; the issuer�s credit and financial strength ratings; the issuer�s financial performance, including
earnings trends, dividend payments and asset quality; any specific events which may influence the operations of the issuer; the general outlook
for market conditions in the industry or geographic region in which the issuer operates; and the length of time and the degree to which the fair
value of an issuer�s securities remains below the Company�s cost. With respect to fixed maturity investments, the Company considers any factors
that might raise doubt about the issuer�s ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms and whether the Company expects to
recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. With respect to equity securities, the Company considers its ability and intent to hold the
investment for a period of time to allow for a recovery in value. The Company applies these factors to all securities.

C. Proceeds from sales

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities and the gross realized gains and losses on those sales were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

(in millions)
Proceeds

from Sales
Gross
Gains

Gross
Losses

Proceeds
from Sales

Gross
Gains

Gross
Losses

Fixed maturities $ 279.2 $ 4.7 $ 1.1 $ 106.5 $ 4.2 $ 0.8
Equity securities 0.7 -   0.2 -   -   -   
D. Other Investments

The Company held overseas deposits of $148.1 million and $135.1 million at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, which are
investments held in overseas funds and managed exclusively by Lloyd�s. These investments are reflected in other investments in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

E. Other-than-temporary impairments

For the three months ended March 31, 2012, total OTTI of fixed maturities were $1.6 million. Of this amount, $1.9 million was recognized in
earnings, including $0.3 million that was transferred from unrealized losses in accumulated other comprehensive income.

For the three months ended March 31, 2011, total OTTI of fixed maturities and equity securities were $1.2 million. Of this amount, $1.4 million
was recognized in earnings, including $0.2 million that was transferred from unrealized losses in accumulated other comprehensive income.

The methodology and significant inputs used to measure the amount of credit losses on fixed maturities in 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Asset-backed securities, including commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities � the Company utilized cash flow estimates based on
bond specific facts and circumstances that include collateral characteristics, expectations of delinquency and default rates, loss severity,
prepayment speeds and structural support, including subordination and guarantees.

Corporate bonds � the Company utilized a financial model that derives expected cash flows based on probability-of-default factors by credit
rating and asset duration and loss-given-default factors based on security type. These factors are based on historical data provided by an
independent third-party rating agency.

13

Edgar Filing: HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 23



Table of Contents

The following table provides rollforwards of the cumulative amounts related to the Company�s credit loss portion of the OTTI losses on fixed
maturity securities for which the non-credit portion of the loss is included in other comprehensive income.

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Credit losses as of the beginning of the period $ 14.5 $ 16.7
Credit losses for which an OTTI was not previously recognized 0.1 -   
Additional credit losses on securities for which an OTTI was
previously recognized 0.3 0.2
Reductions for securities sold, matured or called during the
period (1.4) (0.6) 

Credit losses as of the end of the period $ 13.5 $ 16.3

F. Restricted assets

In accordance with Lloyd�s operating guidelines, the Company deposits funds at Lloyd�s to support underwriting operations. These funds are
available only to fund claim obligations. These restricted assets consisted of approximately $410 million of fixed maturities and $69 million of
cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2012. The Company also deposits funds with various state and governmental authorities in the U.S.
For a discussion of the Company�s deposits with state and governmental authorities, see also Note 3 � �Investments� of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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7. Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability, i.e., exit price, in an orderly transaction
between market participants. The Company emphasizes the use of observable market data whenever available in determining fair value. Fair
values presented for certain financial instruments are estimates which, in many cases, may differ significantly from the amounts that could be
realized upon immediate liquidation. A hierarchy of the three broad levels of fair value are as follows, with the highest priority given to Level 1
as these are the most reliable, and the lowest priority given to Level 3:

Level 1 � Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 � Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data, including model-derived valuations.

Level 3 � Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

When more than one level of input is used to determine fair value, the financial instrument is classified as Level 2 or 3 according to the lowest
level input that has a significant impact on the fair value measurement.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments and have not changed since
last year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Fixed Maturities

Level 1 securities generally include U.S. Treasury issues and other securities that are highly liquid and for which quoted market prices are
available. Level 2 securities are valued using pricing for similar securities and pricing models that incorporate observable inputs including, but
not limited to yield curves and issuer spreads. Level 3 securities include issues for which little observable data can be obtained, primarily due to
the illiquid nature of the securities, and for which significant inputs used to determine fair value are based on the Company�s own assumptions.
Non-binding broker quotes are also included in Level 3.

The Company utilizes a third party pricing service for the valuation of the majority of its fixed maturity securities and receives one quote per
security. When quoted market prices in an active market are available, they are provided by the pricing service as the fair value and such values
are classified as Level 1. Since fixed maturities other than U.S. Treasury securities generally do not trade on a daily basis, the pricing service
prepares estimates of fair value for those securities using pricing applications based on a market approach. Inputs into the fair value pricing
common to all asset classes include: benchmark U.S. Treasury security yield curves; reported trades of identical or similar fixed maturity
securities; broker/dealer quotes of identical or similar fixed maturity securities and structural characteristics such as maturity date, coupon,
mandatory principal payment dates, frequency of interest and principal payments, and optional redemption features. Inputs into the fair value
applications that are unique by asset class include, but are not limited to:

� U.S. government agencies � determination of direct versus indirect government support and whether any contingencies exist with
respect to the timely payment of principal and interest.

� Foreign government � estimates of appropriate market spread versus underlying related sovereign treasury curve(s) dependent on
liquidity and direct or contingent support.

� Municipals � overall credit quality, including assessments of the level and variability of: sources of payment such as income, sales or
property taxes, levies or user fees; credit support such as insurance; state or local economic and political base; natural resource
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availability; and susceptibility to natural or man-made catastrophic events such as hurricanes, earthquakes or acts of terrorism.

� Corporate fixed maturities � overall credit quality, including assessments of the level and variability of: industry economic sensitivity;
company financial policies; quality of management; regulatory environment; competitive position; restrictive covenants; and security
or collateral.

� Residential mortgage-backed securities � estimates of prepayment speeds based upon: historical prepayment rate trends; underlying
collateral interest rates; geographic concentration; vintage year; borrower credit quality characteristics; interest rate and yield curve
forecasts; U.S. government support programs; tax policies; delinquency/default trends; and, in the case of non-agency collateralized
mortgage obligations, severity of loss upon default and length of time to recover proceeds following default.

15

Edgar Filing: HANOVER INSURANCE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 26



Table of Contents

� Commercial mortgage-backed securities � overall credit quality, including assessments of the level and variability of: collateral type
such as office, retail, residential, lodging, or other; geographic concentration by region, state, metropolitan statistical area and locale;
vintage year; historical collateral performance including defeasance, delinquency, default and special servicer trends; and capital
structure support features.

� Asset-backed securities � overall credit quality, including assessments of the underlying collateral type such as credit card receivables,
auto loan receivables, equipment lease receivables and real property lease receivables; geographic diversification; vintage year;
historical collateral performance including delinquency, default and casualty trends; economic conditions influencing use rates and
resale values; and contract structural support features.

Generally, all prices provided by the pricing service, except actively traded securities with quoted market prices, are reported as Level 2.

The Company holds privately placed fixed maturity securities and certain other fixed maturity securities that do not have an active market and
for which the pricing service cannot provide fair values. The Company determines fair values for these securities using either matrix pricing
utilizing the market approach or broker quotes. The Company will use observable market data as inputs into the fair value applications, as
discussed in the determination of Level 2 fair values, to the extent it is available, but is also required to use a certain amount of unobservable
judgment due to the illiquid nature of the securities involved. Unobservable judgment reflected in the Company�s matrix model accounts for
estimates of additional spread required by market participants for factors such as issue size, structural complexity, high bond coupon, long
maturity term or other unique features. These matrix-priced securities are reported as Level 2 or Level 3, depending on the significance of the
impact of unobservable judgment on the security�s value. Additionally, the Company may obtain non-binding broker quotes which are reported
as Level 3.

Equity Securities

Level 1 includes publicly traded securities valued at quoted market prices. Level 2 includes securities that are valued using pricing for similar
securities and pricing models that incorporate observable inputs. Level 2 also includes fair values obtained from net asset values provided by
mutual fund investment managers, upon which subscriptions and redemptions can be executed. Level 3 consists of common or preferred stock of
private companies for which observable inputs are not available.

The Company utilizes a third party pricing service for the valuation of the majority of its equity securities and receives one quote for each equity
security. When quoted market prices in an active market are available, they are provided by the pricing service as the fair value and such values
are classified as Level 1. Generally, all prices provided by the pricing service, except quoted market prices, are reported as Level 2. The
company holds certain equity securities that have been issued by privately-held entities that do not have an active market and for which the
pricing service cannot provide fair values. Generally, the Company estimates fair value for these securities based on the issuer�s book value and
market multiples. These securities are reported as Level 3 as market multiples represent significant unobservable inputs.
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Mortgage Loans

Fair values are estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to
borrowers with similar credit ratings and are reported as Level 2.

17
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Other Investments

Fair values of overseas trust funds are provided by the investment manager based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets and
are reported as Level 2.

Debt

The fair value of debt was estimated based on quoted market prices. If a quoted market price is not available, fair values are estimated using
discounted cash flows that are based on current interest rates and yield curves for debt issuances with maturities and credit risks consistent with
the debt being valued. Debt is reported as Level 2.

The estimated fair values of the financial instruments were as follows:

(in millions) March 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 628.3 $ 628.3 $ 820.4 $ 820.4
Fixed maturities 6,470.6 6,470.6 6,284.7 6,284.7
Equity securities 334.1 334.1 246.4 246.4
Mortgage loans 4.5 4.8 4.7 5.0
Other investments 149.6 149.4 135.1 135.1

Total financial assets $ 7,587.1 $ 7,587.2 $ 7,491.3 $ 7,491.6

Financial Liabilities
Debt $ 918.1 $ 997.6 $ 911.1 $ 1,014.9

The Company has processes designed to ensure that the values received from its third party pricing service are accurately recorded, that the data
inputs and valuation techniques utilized are appropriate and consistently applied and that the assumptions are reasonable and consistent with the
objective of determining fair value. The Company performs a review of the fair value hierarchy classifications and of prices received from its
pricing service on a quarterly basis. The Company reviews the pricing services� policies describing its methodology, processes, practices and
inputs, including various financial models used to value securities. Also, the Company reviews the portfolio pricing. Securities with changes in
prices that exceed a defined threshold are verified to independent sources if available. If upon review, the Company is not satisfied with the
validity of a given price, a pricing challenge would be submitted to the pricing service along with supporting documentation for its review. The
Company does not adjust quotes or prices obtained from the pricing service unless the pricing service agrees with the Company�s challenge.
During 2012 and 2011, the Company did not adjust any prices received from brokers or its pricing service.

Changes in the observability of valuation inputs may result in a reclassification of certain financial assets or liabilities within the fair value
hierarchy. Reclassifications between levels of the fair value hierarchy are reported as of the beginning of the period in which the reclassification
occurs. As previously discussed, the Company utilizes a third party pricing service for the valuation of the majority of its fixed maturities and
equity securities. The pricing service has indicated that it will only produce an estimate of fair value if there is objectively verifiable information
to produce a valuation. If the pricing service discontinues pricing an investment, the Company will use observable market data to the extent it is
available, but may also be required to make assumptions for market based inputs that are unavailable due to market conditions.
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The following tables provide, for each hierarchy level, the Company�s assets and liabilities at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Financial instruments not carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets include cash and
cash equivalents, Federal Home Loan Bank common stock of $9.7 million, mortgage loans and debt at March 31, 2012 and Federal Home Loan
Bank common stock of $9.4 million at December 31, 2011.

March 31, 2012
(in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed maturities:
U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 231.0 $ 89.2 $ 141.8 $ -   
Foreign governments 273.8 55.0 218.8 -   
Municipal 1,005.0 -   988.0 17.0
Corporate 3,545.6 -   3,516.9 28.7
Residential mortgage-backed, U.S. agency backed 653.0 -   653.0 -   
Residential mortgage-backed, non-agency 158.4 -   157.7 0.7
Commercial mortgage-backed 387.4 -   382.9 4.5
Asset-backed 216.4 -   192.1 24.3

Total fixed maturities 6,470.6 144.2 6,251.2 75.2
Cash and cash equivalents 628.3 628.3 -  -   
Equity securities 334.1 255.3 57.4 21.4
Mortgage loans 4.8 -   4.8 -   
Other investments 149.4 -   149.4 -   

Total investment assets at fair value $ 7,587.2 $ 1,027.8 $ 6,462.8 $ 96.6

Debt 997.6 -   997.6 -   

Total liabilities at fair value $ 997.6 $ -   $ 997.6 $ -   

December 31, 2011
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed maturities:
U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 269.3 $ 147.3 $ 122.0 $ -   
Foreign governments 239.0 -   239.0 -   
Municipal 1,028.0 -   1,014.4 13.6
Corporate 3,375.6 -   3,351.8 23.8
Residential mortgage-backed, U.S. agency backed 663.3 -   663.3 -   
Residential mortgage-backed, non-agency 185.3 -   180.1 5.2
Commercial mortgage-backed 379.1 -   374.4 4.7
Asset-backed 145.1 -   116.9 28.2

Total fixed maturities 6,284.7 147.3 6,061.9 75.5
Equity securities 237.0 177.4 36.2 23.4
Other investments 135.1 -   135.1 -   

Total investment assets at fair value $ 6,656.8 $ 324.7 $ 6,233.2 $ 98.9
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The table below provides a reconciliation for all assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3).

Fixed Maturities

(in millions) Municipal Corporate

Residential

mortgage-

backed, non-

agency

Commercial

mortgage-

backed
Asset-
backed Total

Equity
Securities

Total
Assets

Three Months Ended March 31, 2012
Balance January 1, 2012 $ 13.6 $ 23.8 $ 5.2 $ 4.7 $ 28.2 $ 75.5 $ 23.4 $ 98.9
Transfers into Level 3 -   4.3 -   -   -   4.3 0.1 4.4
Transfers out of Level 3 -   -   -   -   (7.7) (7.7) -   (7.7) 
Total gains (losses):
Included in earnings -   0.1 -   -   (0.1) -   (0.2) (0.2) 
Included in other comprehensive income - net
appreciation on available for sale securities 0.6 0.8 0.1 -   (1.0) 0.5 (1.2) (0.7) 
Purchases and sales:
Purchases 3.0 -   -   -   5.2 8.2 -   8.2
Sales (0.2) (0.3) (4.6) (0.2) (0.3) (5.6) (0.7) (6.3) 

Balance March 31, 2012 $ 17.0 $ 28.7 $ 0.7 $ 4.5 $ 24.3 $ 75.2 $ 21.4 $ 96.6

Three Months Ended March 31, 2011
Balance January 1, 2011 $ 16.6 $ 28.2 $ 0.8 $ 5.5 $ 13.5 $ 64.6 $ 2.9 $ 67.5
Transfers into Level 3 -   3.7 -   -   -   3.7 -   3.7
Total (losses) gains:
Included in earnings -   -   -   -   -   -   (0.5) (0.5) 
Included in other comprehensive income (0.4) 0.1 -   -   -   (0.3) 0.5 0.2
Purchases and sales:
Purchases -   2.9 -   -   -   2.9 -   2.9
Sales (0.3) (0.6) (0.2) (0.2) (0.1) (1.4) -   (1.4) 

Balance March 31, 2011 $ 15.9 $ 34.3 $ 0.6 $ 5.3 $ 13.4 $ 69.5 $ 2.9 $ 72.4

During the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company transferred fixed maturities between Level 2 and Level 3 primarily as a
result of assessing the significance of unobservable inputs on the fair value measurement. There were no transfers out of Level 3 during the three
months ended March 31, 2011. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the three months ended March 31, 2012 or 2011.

The following table summarizes gains and losses due to changes in fair value that are recorded in net income for Level 3 assets.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

(in millions) Other-than-

temporary

Net realized

investment

Total Other-than-

temporary

Net realized
investment

gains

Total
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Level 3 Assets:
Fixed maturities:
Corporate $ -   $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ -   $ -   $ -   
Asset-backed (0.1) -   (0.1) -   -   -   

Total fixed maturities (0.1) 0.1 -   -   -   -   
Equities -   (0.2) (0.2) (0.5) -   (0.5) 

Total assets $ (0.1) $ (0.1) $ (0.2) $ (0.5) $ -   $ (0.5) 
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The following table provides additional information about significant unobservable inputs used in the fair valuations of Level 3 assets as of
March 31, 2012:

Fair Value

(in millions) Valuation Technique

Significant

Unobservable Inputs

Range (Wtd

Average)

Fixed maturities:
Municipal $ 17.0 Discounted cash flow Discount for:

Small issue size

Long maturity

Above-market coupon

1.0-4.0% (3.1%)

0.5% (0.5%)

0.3-1.0% (0.5%)

Corporate 28.7 Discounted cash flow Discount for:

Credit stress

Above-market coupon

Small issue size

Long maturity

2.0-3.0% (2.0%)

0.3-2.0% (0.8%)

0.3-3.0% (0.5%)

0.5% (0.5%)

Commercial mortgage-backed 4.5 Discounted cash flow Discount for:

Credit stress

Small issue size

Above-market coupon

1.0% (1.0%)

0.5% (0.5%)

0.5% (0.5%)

Asset-backed 24.3 Discounted cash flow Discount for:

Long maturity

Small issue size

Above-market coupon

Lease structure

0.5-0.8% (0.7%)

0.3-0.5% (0.5%)

0.3-1.0% (0.4%)

0.3% (0.3%)

Equities 21.4 Market comparables Net tangible asset market
multiples 0.87% (0.87%)

Significant increases (decreases) in any of the above inputs in isolation would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.
There are no interrelationships between these inputs which might magnify or mitigate the effect of changes in unobservable inputs on the fair
value measurement.
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8. Other Comprehensive Income

The following table provides a reconciliation of gross unrealized investment gains (losses) to the net balance shown in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

(in millions) Pre-Tax

Tax Benefit

(Expense) Net of Tax Pre-Tax

Tax Benefit

(Expense) Net of Tax

Unrealized gains on available-for- sale securities:

Unrealized gains arising during period $ 70.5 $ (21.0) $ 49.5 $ 6.4 $ 5.2 $ 11.6

Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized in
net income 2.3 3.3 5.6 2.9 2.1 5.0

Other comprehensive income $ 68.2 $ (24.3) $ 43.9 $ 3.5 $ 3.1 $ 6.6

9. Segment Information

The Company�s primary business operations include insurance products and services provided through four operating segments. These operating
segments are Commercial Lines, Personal Lines, Chaucer, and Other Property and Casualty. Commercial Lines includes commercial multiple
peril, commercial automobile, workers� compensation, and other commercial coverages, such as specialty program business, inland marine,
surety and other bonds, professional liability and management liability. Personal Lines includes personal automobile, homeowners and other
personal coverages. Chaucer includes property, marine and aviation, energy, U.K. motor, and casualty and other coverages (which includes
international liability, specialist coverages, and syndicate participations). The Other Property and Casualty segment consists of: Opus Investment
Management, Inc., which markets investment management services to institutions, pension funds and other organizations; earnings on holding
company assets; and, a voluntary pools business which is in run-off. The separate financial information is presented consistent with the way
results are regularly evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The Company reports interest expense related to its debt separately from the earnings of its operating segments. This consists of interest expense
on the Company�s senior debentures, junior debentures, subordinated notes, advances under the Company�s collateralized borrowing program
with the FHLBB, letter of credit facility, and capital securities.

Management evaluates the results of the aforementioned segments on a pre-tax basis. Segment income (loss) excludes certain items which are
included in net income (loss), such as income taxes and net realized investment gains and losses, including gains and losses from certain
derivative instruments. Such gains and losses are excluded since they are determined by interest rates, financial markets and the timing of sales.
Also, segment income (loss) excludes net gains and losses on disposals of businesses, discontinued operations, costs to acquire businesses,
restructuring costs, extraordinary items, the cumulative effect of accounting changes and certain other items. Although the items excluded from
segment income (loss) may be significant components in understanding and assessing the Company�s financial performance, management
believes that the presentation of segment income (loss) enhances an investor�s understanding of the Company�s results of operations by
highlighting net income (loss) attributable to the core operations of the business. However, segment income (loss) should not be construed as a
substitute for net income (loss) determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
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Summarized below is financial information with respect to the Company�s business segments:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Segment revenues:
Commercial Lines $ 475.7 $ 439.3
Personal Lines 388.4 386.7
Chaucer 251.7 -   
Other Property and Casualty 4.5 5.8

Total 1,120.3 831.8
Intersegment revenues (1.6) (1.3) 

Total segment revenues 1,118.7 830.5
Net realized investment gains 3.1 3.3

Total revenues $ 1,121.8 $ 833.8

Segment income (loss) before income taxes:
Commercial Lines:
GAAP underwriting income (loss) $ (2.5) $ (16.0) 
Net investment income 35.7 33.6
Other income 0.7 0.6

Commercial Lines segment income 33.9 18.2
Personal Lines:
GAAP underwriting income 4.2 6.4
Net investment income 21.6 22.7
Other income 1.7 1.2

Personal Lines segment income 27.5 30.3
Chaucer:
GAAP underwriting income 14.7 -   
Net investment income 9.4 -   
Other income 1.4 -   

Chaucer segment income 25.5 -   
Other Property and Casualty:
GAAP underwriting income (loss) (0.4) 0.1
Net investment income 2.1 4.1
Other net expenses (2.9) (2.9) 

Other Property and Casualty segment income (loss) (1.2) 1.3

Total 85.7 49.8
Interest expense on debt (16.2) (10.4) 

Segment income before income taxes 69.5 39.4
Adjustments to segment income (loss):
Net realized investment gains 3.1 3.3
Loss from retirement of debt -   (2.5) 
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Costs related to acquired businesses (1.5) (2.7) 
Net foreign exchange losses (0.3) -   

Income before income taxes $ 70.8 $ 37.5
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The following table provides identifiable assets for the Company�s business segments and discontinued operations:

(in millions)

March 31,

2012

December 31,

2011

U.S. Companies $ 8,484.7 $ 8,471.6
Chaucer 4,302.2 4,005.8
Discontinued operations 126.5 121.2

Total $ 12,913.4 $ 12,598.6

The Company reviews the assets of its U.S. Companies collectively and does not allocate them between the Commercial Lines, Personal Lines,
and Other Property and Casualty segments.

10. Stock-based Compensation

Compensation cost and the related tax benefits were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March  31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Stock-based compensation expense $ 4.1 $ 3.4
Tax benefit (1.4) (1.2) 

Stock-based compensation expense, net of taxes $ 2.7 $ 2.2

Stock Options

Information on the Company�s stock option plan activity is summarized as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2012 2011

(in whole shares and dollars) Shares

Weighted

Average

Exercise Price Shares

Weighted

Average

Exercise Price

Outstanding, beginning of period 2,715,430 $ 38.57 2,843,909 $ 39.22
Granted 517,500 36.81 297,000 46.47
Exercised (33,224) 32.24 (117,714) 33.17
Forfeited or cancelled -     -     -     -     
Expired (158,850) 44.04 (256,250) 57.00
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Outstanding, end of period 3,040,856 38.06 2,766,945 38.61
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Restricted Stock Units

The following tables summarize activity information about employee restricted stock units:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

(in whole shares and dollars) Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair

Value Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair

Value

Time-based restricted stock units:
Outstanding, beginning of period 768,529 $ 40.17 838,129 $ 40.93
Granted 168,750 36.93 95,503 46.49
Vested (117,522) 35.27 (185,253) 45.13
Forfeited (10,309) 39.67 (4,380) 45.67

Outstanding, end of period 809,448 40.21 743,999 40.57

Performance and market-based restricted stock
units:
Outstanding, beginning of period 69,500 $ 45.37 101,680 $ 39.62
Granted 99,500 36.61 42,500 46.47
Vested -     -     (25,055) 45.21
Forfeited -     -     -     -     

Outstanding, end of period 169,000 40.21 119,125 40.89

Performance based restricted stock units are based upon the achievement of the performance metrics at 100%. These units have the potential to
range from 0% to 150% of the shares disclosed, which varies based on grant year and individual participation level. Increases above the 100%
target level are reflected as granted in the period in which the performance-based stock unit goals are achieved. Decreases below the 100% target
level are reflected as forfeited.

In the first three months of 2012 the Company granted market-based awards to certain members of senior management and are reflected in the
Performance and market-based restricted stock activity. The attainment of these stock units are based on the relative total shareholder return
(�TSR�) of the Company. This metric is based on a three-year average relative TSR as compared to a Property and Casualty Index of peer
companies. The fair value of market based awards was estimated at the date of grant using a valuation model. These units have the potential to
range from 0% to 133% of the shares disclosed.

11. Earnings Per Share and Shareholders� Equity Transactions

The following table provides weighted average share information used in the calculation of the Company�s basic and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions, except per share data) 2012 2011
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Basic shares used in the calculation of earnings per share 44.9 45.3
Dilutive effect of securities:
Employee stock options 0.2 0.3
Non-vested stock grants 0.4 0.4

Diluted shares used in the calculation of earnings per share 45.5 46.0

Per share effect of dilutive securities on income from continuing operations and
net income $ (0.02) $ (0.01) 

Diluted earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 excludes 1.8 million and 1.2 million, respectively, of common
shares issuable under the Company�s stock compensation plans, because their effect would be antidilutive.

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, the Company paid a dividend of 30.0 cents ($0.30) per share each to its shareholders, totaling
$13.5 million.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

Durand Litigation

On March 12, 2007, a putative class action suit captioned Jennifer A. Durand v. The Hanover Insurance Group, Inc., The Allmerica Financial
Cash Balance Pension Plan was filed in the United States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky. The named plaintiff, a former
employee who received a lump sum distribution from the Company�s Cash Balance Plan (the �Plan�) at or about the time of her termination, claims
that she and others similarly situated did not receive the appropriate lump sum distribution because in computing the lump sum, the Company
understated the accrued benefit in the calculation.

The Plaintiff filed an Amended Complaint adding two new named plaintiffs and additional claims on December 11, 2009. In response, the
Company filed a Motion to Dismiss on January 30, 2010. In addition to the pending claim challenging the calculation of lump sum distributions,
the Amended Complaint includes: (a) a claim that the Plan failed to calculate participants� account balances and lump sum payments properly
because interest credits were based solely upon the performance of each participant�s selection from among various hypothetical investment
options (as the Plan provided) rather than crediting the greater of that performance or the 30 year Treasury rate; (b) a claim that the 2004 Plan
amendment, which changed interest crediting for all participants from the performance of participant�s investment selections to the 30 year
Treasury rate, reduced benefits in violation of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (�ERISA�) for participants who had account
balances as of the amendment date by not continuing to provide them performance-based interest crediting on those balances; and (c) claims for
breach of fiduciary duty and ERISA notice requirements arising from the various interest crediting and lump sum distribution matters of which
Plaintiffs complain. The District Court granted the Company�s Motion to Dismiss the additional claims on statute of limitations grounds by a
Memorandum Opinion dated March 31, 2011, leaving the claims substantially as set forth in the original March 12, 2007 complaint. Plaintiffs
filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the District Court�s decision to dismiss the additional claims, which was denied with respect to the claims
set forth in (a) and (b) above; however, the Court did allow the fiduciary duty claims to stand.

At this time, the Company is unable to provide a reasonable estimate of the potential range of ultimate liability if the outcome of the suit is
unfavorable. This matter is still in the early stages of litigation. The extent to which any of the Plaintiffs� multiple theories of liability, some of
which are overlapping and others of which are quite complex and novel, are accepted and upheld on appeal will significantly affect the Plan�s or
the Company�s potential liability. It is not clear whether a class will be certified or, if certified, how many former or current Plan participants, if
any, will be included. The statute of limitations applicable to the alleged class has not yet been finally determined and the extent of potential
liability, if any, will depend on this final determination. In addition, assuming for these purposes that the Plaintiffs prevail with respect to claims
that benefits accrued or payable under the Plan were understated, then there are numerous possible theories and other variables upon which
any revised calculation of benefits as requested under Plaintiffs� claims could be based. It is likely that any adverse judgment in this case would
be against the Plan. Such a judgment would be expected to create a liability for the Plan, with resulting effects on the Plan�s assets available to
pay benefits. The Company�s future required funding of the Plan could also be impacted by such a liability.

Hurricane Katrina Litigation

In August 2007, the State of Louisiana filed a putative class action in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans, State of Louisiana,
entitled State of Louisiana, individually and on behalf of State of Louisiana, Division of Administration, Office of Community Development ex
rel The Honorable Charles C. Foti, Jr., The Attorney General For the State of Louisiana, individually and as a class action on behalf of all
recipients of funds as well as all eligible and/or future recipients of funds through The Road Home Program v. AAA Insurance, et al.,
No. 07-8970. The complaint named as defendants over 200 foreign and domestic insurance carriers, including the Company, and asserts a right
to benefit payments from insurers on behalf of current and former Louisiana citizens who have applied for and received or will receive funds
through Louisiana�s �Road Home� program. The case was thereafter removed to the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana.

On March 5, 2009, the court issued an Order granting in part and denying in part a Motion to Dismiss filed by Defendants. The court dismissed
all claims for bad faith and breach of fiduciary duty and all claims for flood damages under policies with flood exclusions or asserted under
Louisiana�s Valued Policy Law, but rejected the insurers� arguments that the purported assignments from individual claimants to the state were
barred by anti-assignment provisions in the insurers� policies. On April 30, 2009, Defendants filed a Petition for Permission to Appeal to the
United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit (the �Fifth Circuit�), which was granted. On July 28, 2010, the Fifth Circuit certified the
anti-assignment issue to the Louisiana Supreme Court. On May 10, 2011, the Supreme Court of Louisiana issued a decision holding that the
anti-assignment provisions were not violative of public policy. The court also indicated, however, that such provisions would only serve to bar
post-loss assignments if they clearly and unambiguously expressed that they apply to post-loss assignments. On June 28, 2011, the Fifth Circuit
remanded the case to the Federal District Court for further proceedings consistent with the Louisiana�s Supreme Court�s opinion. On
September 12, 2011, the State of Louisiana filed a Motion to Remand the case to state court, which was denied by an Order dated October 28,
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At this time, the Company is unable to provide a reasonable estimate of the potential range of ultimate liability. The Company is unable to
determine how many policyholders have assigned claims under the Road Home program and, in any case, has no basis to estimate the amount of
any differences between what the Company paid with respect to any such claim and the amount that the State of Louisiana may claim should
properly have been paid under each policy.

Other Matters

The Company has been named a defendant in various other legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. In addition, the Company
is involved, from time to time, in examinations, investigations and proceedings by governmental and self-regulatory agencies. The potential
outcome of any such action or regulatory proceedings in which the Company has been named a defendant or the subject of an inquiry or
investigation, and its ultimate liability, if any, from such action or regulatory proceedings, is difficult to predict at this time. The ultimate
resolutions of such proceedings are not expected to have a material effect on its financial position, although they could have a material effect on
the results of operations for a particular quarter or annual period.

13. Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events requiring adjustment to the financial statements.

On April 30, 2012, the Company completed the sale of its third party administration subsidiary, Citizens Management, Inc. This transaction is
expected to result in an approximate $11 million gain, after taxes.
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Introduction

The following Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is intended to assist readers in
understanding the interim consolidated results of operations and financial condition of The Hanover Insurance Group, Inc. and subsidiaries
(�THG�). Our consolidated results of operations and financial condition are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�). This discussion should be read in conjunction with the interim consolidated financial statements
and related footnotes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations contained in our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 29, 2012.

Our results of operations include the accounts of The Hanover Insurance Company (�Hanover Insurance�) and Citizens Insurance Company of
America (�Citizens�), our principal U.S. domiciled property and casualty companies; Chaucer Holdings plc (�Chaucer�), and certain other insurance
and non-insurance subsidiaries. Effective July 1, 2011, we acquired Chaucer, a specialist insurance underwriting group which operates through
the Society and Corporation of Lloyd�s (�Lloyd�s�) and is domiciled in the United Kingdom (�U.K.�). Our results of operations include Chaucer�s
results in periods subsequent to July 1, 2011. Accordingly, our results for the first quarter of 2011 do not include Chaucer�s results. Additionally,
our results of operations include our discontinued operations, consisting of our former life insurance and accident and health businesses.

Executive Overview

Our business operations consist of four operating segments: Commercial Lines, Personal Lines, Chaucer and Other Property and Casualty.

As further described in Note 3 � �Acquisitions� of the Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements, we completed the acquisition of Chaucer
on July 1, 2011, which has added meaningful business volumes to our quarterly results and has affected the comparability of our interim
consolidated financial statements and related footnotes. For the three months ended March 31, 2012, our discussion of the results of operations
includes results from all of our segments. Results of operations for the comparable period in 2011 do not include any results of Chaucer.
Chaucer�s financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2012 will be discussed separately.

Our segment income excluding taxes and interest was $85.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012 compared to $49.8 million in the
same period in 2011, an increase of $35.9 million. This increase is primarily due to $25.5 million of segment income generated by Chaucer, as
well as decreased catastrophe and non-catastrophe weather-related losses in the first quarter of 2012 and growth in earned premium in our
domestic insurance companies. This increase in segment income was partially offset by a decrease in favorable development on prior years� loss
and loss adjustment expense (�LAE�) reserves. Pre-tax catastrophe losses were $40.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012, of which
$6.5 million related to our Chaucer segment. During the three months ended March 31, 2011, pre-tax catastrophe losses were $49.7 million.
Favorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves was $17.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012, consisting of $21.7
million of favorable development related to our Chaucer segment and $4.5 million of unfavorable development related to our Commercial,
Personal, and Other Property and Casualty segments, compared to favorable development of $28.5 million in the same period in 2011.

Commercial Lines

We believe our unique small commercial offerings, distinctiveness in the middle market, and continued development of specialty lines provides
us with a diversified portfolio of products and delivers significant value to agents and policyholders. The small commercial and middle market
businesses are expected to contribute to premium growth in Commercial Lines over the next several years. We continue to pursue our core
strategy of developing strong partnerships with agents, distinctive products, franchise value through limited distribution, and industry
segmentation.

Growth in our specialty lines continues to be an important part of our strategy supported by several acquisitions over the past several years. Our
Commercial Lines segment net written premium grew by 14.8% in the first three months of 2012, driven by both our specialty businesses and
our core commercial businesses.

We believe these efforts have driven, and will continue to drive, improvement in our overall mix of business and ultimately our underwriting
profitability. Underwriting results improved in the first three months of 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to
decreased catastrophe and non-catastrophe weather-related losses and increases in rate, partially offset by unfavorable development on prior
years� loss and LAE reserves.

The competitive nature of the Commercial Lines market requires us to be highly disciplined in our underwriting process to ensure that we write
business at acceptable margins. Also, we continue to seek rate increases in our property lines as a result of the heightened catastrophe and
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Personal Lines

In our Personal Lines business, we focus on partnering with high quality, value-added agencies that deliver consultative selling and stress the
importance of account rounding (the conversion of single policy customers to accounts with multiple policies and additional coverages). Almost
70% of our policies in force are account business. We are focused on making investments that help maintain profitability, build a distinctive
position in the market, help diversify us geographically from our historical core states of Michigan, Massachusetts, New York, and New Jersey
and provide us with profitable growth opportunities.

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, our Personal Lines segment net written premiums grew by approximately 1.8%, driven by
higher rates in both our personal automobile and homeowners lines and an increase in policies in force of 4.8% in our target growth states.
Overall, however, as the result of actions we have taken and will continue to take to terminate our relationship with certain agencies as part of
our partner agent strategy and our ongoing exposure management, we may experience modest declines in our overall net written premiums in
2012.

Underwriting results declined in the first three months of 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to a change in
development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves, partially offset by decreased non-catastrophe weather-related loss and LAE claims activity.
Unfavorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $3.8 million, compared to
favorable development of $14.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Similar to our strategy in Commercial Lines, we continue to
seek additional rate increases in our property lines (homeowners coverage) as a result of the catastrophe and non-catastrophe weather-related
losses that the industry experienced in recent years. In addition, continued increases in premium are expected in our target growth states as we
seek to improve profitability and diversify from our existing core states.

Chaucer

In our Chaucer business, we deploy specialist underwriters in over 30 major insurance and reinsurance classes throughout our diversified
portfolio, which includes property, marine and aviation, energy, U.K. motor and casualty. We access business through Lloyd�s, the leading
international insurance and reinsurance market, which provides us with access to specialist business in over 200 countries and territories
worldwide through its international licenses, brand reputation and strong security rating.

As expected, underwriting opportunities are now increasing and terms and conditions are improving across the majority of international risk
classes for our Chaucer business following a difficult period for international insurance markets since 2010, with increased frequency and
severity of both natural and man-made catastrophes worldwide. In response, the focus of our capital and underwriting capabilities is on those
areas where we believe rates are more favorable, in particular for international property, marine and energy risks, while we maintain or reduce
business in those areas where rates are currently under pressure, notably casualty and aviation.

Overall, we believe that the strength and depth of our underwriting teams, the broad diversity of our underwriting portfolio and our membership
in the Lloyd�s platform, together underpin our ability to manage both the scale and composition of our business. Moreover, these strengths,
combined with our continued active management of our portfolio and the opportunities that we expect to arise across the majority of our
markets, provide a strong basis for the profitable development of the Chaucer business.
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Description of Operating Segments

Our primary business operations include insurance products and services currently provided through four operating segments. These operating
segments are Commercial Lines, Personal Lines, Chaucer and Other Property and Casualty. Commercial Lines includes commercial multiple
peril, commercial automobile, workers� compensation and other commercial coverages, such as specialty program business, inland marine, surety
and other bonds, professional liability and management liability. Personal Lines includes personal automobile, homeowners and other personal
coverages. Chaucer includes property, marine and aviation, energy, U.K. motor, and casualty and other coverages (which includes international
liability, specialist coverages, and syndicate participations). The Other Property and Casualty segment consists of Opus Investment
Management, Inc., which markets investment management services to institutions, pension funds and other organizations; earnings on holding
company assets; and, a voluntary pools business which is in run-off. We present the separate financial information of each segment consistent
with the manner in which our chief operating decision maker evaluates results in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

We report interest expense related to our debt separately from the earnings of our operating segments. This consists of interest on our senior
debentures, junior debentures, subordinated notes, advances under our collateralized borrowing program with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Boston (�FHLBB�), letter of credit facility, and capital securities.

Results of Operations � Net Income

Our consolidated net income includes the results of our four operating segments (segment income), which we evaluate on a pre-tax basis and we
exclude interest expense on debt. Segment income excludes certain other items which we believe are not indicative of our core operations, such
as income taxes and net realized investment gains and losses, including net gains and losses on certain derivative instruments. Such gains and
losses are excluded since they are determined by interest rates, financial markets and the timing of sales. Also, segment income excludes net
gains and losses on disposals of businesses, discontinued operations, costs to acquire businesses, restructuring costs, extraordinary items, the
cumulative effect of accounting changes and certain other items. Although the items excluded from segment income may be significant
components in understanding and assessing our financial performance, we believe a discussion of segment income enhances an investor�s
understanding of our results of operations by segregating income attributable to the core operations of the business. However, segment income
should not be construed as a substitute for net income.

Catastrophe losses and prior year reserve development are significant components in understanding and assessing the financial performance of
our business. Management reviews and evaluates catastrophes and prior year reserve development separate from the other components of
earnings. Catastrophes and prior-year reserve development are not predictable as to timing or the amount that will affect the results of our
operations and have affected our results in the past few years. Management believes that providing certain financial metrics and trends excluding
the effects of catastrophes and prior year reserve development helps investors to understand the variability in periodic earnings and to evaluate
the underlying performance of our operations.

Our consolidated net income for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $49.7 million, compared to $29.3 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2011. The $20.4 million increase is primarily due to income from our recently acquired Chaucer segment and a decrease in
catastrophe and non�catastrophe weather-related activity, partially offset by a decrease in favorable development on prior years� loss and LAE
reserves.
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The following table reflects segment income and a reconciliation of total segment income to consolidated net income.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Segment income (loss) before income taxes:
Commercial Lines $ 33.9 $ 18.2
Personal Lines 27.5 30.3
Chaucer 25.5 -   
Other Property and Casualty (1.2) 1.3

Total 85.7 49.8
Interest expense on debt (16.2) (10.4) 

Total segment income before income taxes 69.5 39.4

Income tax expense on segment income (23.5) (13.5) 
Net realized investment gains 3.1 3.3
Loss from retirement of debt -   (2.5) 
Costs related to acquired businesses (1.5) (2.7) 
Net foreign exchange losses (0.3) -   
Income tax benefit on non-segment income 3.4 3.9

Income from continuing operations 50.7 27.9
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes (1.0) 1.4

Net income $ 49.7 $ 29.3
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Segment Results

The following is our discussion and analysis of the results of operations by business segment. The segment results are presented before taxes and
other items which management believes are not indicative of our core operations, including realized gains and losses.

The following table summarizes the results of operations for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
March  31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Segment revenues
Net premiums written $ 1,016.8 $ 749.9

Net premiums earned $ 1,035.6 $ 761.7
Net investment income 68.8 60.4
Fees and other income 15.9 9.7

Total segment revenues 1,120.3 831.8

Losses and operating expenses
Losses and LAE 661.4 511.0
Policy acquisition expenses 228.1 162.5
Other operating expenses 145.1 108.5

Total losses and operating expenses 1,034.6 782.0

Segment income (loss) before income taxes $ 85.7 $ 49.8

Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

Segment income was $85.7 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to $49.8 million in the three months ended March 31,
2011, an increase in earnings of $35.9 million. Chaucer�s results accounted for $25.5 million of segment income in the three months ended
March 31, 2012. Catastrophe related activity for our Commercial and Personal Lines businesses in the quarter was $34.1 million, compared to
$49.7 million in the same period of 2011, a decrease of $15.6 million. Excluding the impact of catastrophe related activity, earnings for our
Commercial and Personal Lines businesses decreased by $5.2 million. This decrease was primarily due to unfavorable development on prior
years� loss and LAE reserves in the quarter compared to favorable development in the same period of 2011, partially offset by more favorable
current accident year results. Unfavorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves in Commercial and Personal Lines was $4.5
million in the quarter, compared to favorable development of $28.5 million in the same period in 2011 and $11.8 million during the three months
ended December 31, 2011. The favorable current accident year results are primarily due to a lower level of non-catastrophe weather-related loss
and LAE claims activity in both Commercial and Personal Lines.

Net premiums written grew by $266.9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011,
and net premiums earned grew by $273.9 million. Chaucer accounted for $200.2 million of net premiums written and $237.0 million of net
premiums earned in the three months ended March 31, 2012. The balance of the growth is primarily attributable to Commercial Lines. The
increase in net premiums earned in Commercial Lines is a result of strong retention, rate increases and targeted new business expansion.
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Production and Underwriting Results

The following table summarizes GAAP financial information including net premiums written and loss, LAE, expense and combined ratios for
the Commercial Lines, Personal Lines and Chaucer segments. Loss, LAE, catastrophe loss and combined ratios shown below include prior year
reserve development. These items are not meaningful for our Other Property and Casualty segment.

Three months ended March 31, 2012

(dollars in millions) Gross

Written

Premium
Net Written

Premium
Net Earned
Premium

Catastrophe

Loss
Ratios

Loss & LAE

Ratios

Expense

Ratios
Combined

Ratios

Commercial Lines $ 532.6 $ 468.9 $ 434.9 2.6 61.6 38.7 100.3
Personal Lines 373.2 347.4 363.3 6.3 70.7 27.3 98.0
Chaucer 381.7 200.2 237.0 2.7 57.6 36.2 93.8

Total $ 1,287.5 $ 1,016.5 $ 1,035.2 3.9 63.9 34.2 98.1

Three months ended March 31, 2011

(dollars in millions) Gross

Written

Premium
Net Written

Premium
Net Earned
Premium

Catastrophe
Loss

Ratios
Loss & LAE

Ratios
Expense
Ratios

Combined
Ratios

Commercial Lines $ 466.8 $ 408.5 $ 400.8 6.9 64.2 39.5 103.7
Personal Lines 366.5 341.4 360.9 6.2 70.3 27.2 97.5

Total $ 833.3 $ 749.9 $ 761.7 6.5 67.0 33.7 100.7

The following table summarizes net premiums written, and loss and LAE and catastrophe loss ratios by line of business for the Commercial
Lines and Personal Lines segments. Loss and LAE and catastrophe loss ratios include prior year reserve development.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

(dollars in millions) Net

Premiums
Written

Loss &

LAE
Ratios

Cata-

strophe

Loss

Net
Premiums
Written

Loss &
LAE

Ratios

Cata-

strophe

Loss
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Commercial Lines:
Commercial multiple peril $ 148.0 56.8 6.8 $ 137.2 75.4 15.4
Commercial automobile 70.7 71.4 0.8 62.0 63.4 0.3
Workers� compensation 55.0 72.6 -  45.8 66.5 -  
Other commercial 195.2 59.1 0.5 163.5 54.0 3.6

Total Commercial Lines $ 468.9 61.6 2.6 $ 408.5 64.2 6.9

Personal Lines:

Personal automobile $ 233.1 75.2 1.1 $ 231.1 69.2 -  

Homeowners 105.0 63.7 15.8 101.2 75.5 18.0

Other personal 9.3 55.6 5.6 9.1 35.2 2.9

Total Personal Lines $ 347.4 70.7 6.3 $ 341.4 70.3 6.2
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The following table summarizes premiums written on a gross and net basis and net premiums earned by line of business for the Chaucer
segment.

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2012

(in millions)

Gross
Written

Premium

Net
Written

Premium

Net
Earned

Premium

Chaucer:
Property $ 87.7 $ 29.6 $ 46.7
Marine and Aviation 99.5 58.5 54.2
Energy 71.3 23.3 39.4
U.K. Motor 66.6 45.5 61.5
Casualty and Other 56.6 43.3 35.2

Total Chaucer $ 381.7 $ 200.2 $ 237.0

The following table summarizes GAAP underwriting results for the Commercial Lines, Personal Lines, Chaucer and Other Property and
Casualty segments and reconciles it to segment income.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

(in millions)

Commercial
Lines

Personal

Lines Chaucer

Other
Property

and
Casualty Total

Commercial
Lines

Personal
Lines

Other
Property

and
Casualty Total

GAAP underwriting profit (loss), excluding
prior year reserve development and
catastrophes $ 9.1 $ 31.0 $ (0.5) $ (0.2) $ 39.4 $ (2.8) $ 14.5 $ -   $ 11.7
Prior year favorable (unfavorable) loss and
LAE reserve development (0.5) (3.8) 21.7 (0.2) 17.2 14.3 14.1 0.1 28.5
Pre-tax catastrophe effect (11.1) (23.0) (6.5) -   (40.6) (27.5) (22.2) -   (49.7) 

GAAP underwriting profit (loss) (2.5) 4.2 14.7 (0.4) 16.0 (16.0) 6.4 0.1 (9.5) 
Net investment income 35.7 21.6 9.4 2.1 68.8 33.6 22.7 4.1 60.4
Fees and other income 5.1 3.5 5.3 2.0 15.9 4.9 3.1 1.7 9.7
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Other operating expenses (4.4) (1.8) (3.9) (4.9) (15.0) (4.3) (1.9) (4.6) (10.8) 

Segment income (loss) before income taxes $ 33.9 $ 27.5 $ 25.5 $ (1.2) $ 85.7 $ 18.2 $ 30.3 $ 1.3 $ 49.8

Commercial Lines

Commercial Lines net premiums written was $468.9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to $408.5 million in the three
months ended March 31, 2011. This $60.4 million increase was primarily driven by strong retention, rate increases, and targeted new business
expansion.

Commercial Lines underwriting loss in the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $2.5 million, compared to $16.0 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2011, a decrease of $13.5 million. This was primarily due to decreased catastrophe losses and non-catastrophe
weather-related loss and LAE claims activity, partially offset by unfavorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves. Catastrophe
losses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 were $11.1 million, compared to $27.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011, a
decrease of $16.4 million. Unfavorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $0.5
million, compared to favorable development of $14.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011, a change of $14.8 million.

Commercial Lines underwriting profit, excluding prior year loss and LAE reserve development and catastrophes, was $9.1 million in the three
months ended March 31, 2012, compared to a loss of $2.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011. This $11.9 million improvement
was primarily due to decreased non-catastrophe weather-related loss and LAE claims activity. The current quarter�s results also benefited from
growth in earned premium and the resulting positive effect on our expense ratio, and from what we believe to be an improved mix of business.
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Pricing in Commercial Lines have improved as the industry responds to recent weather-related losses and trends and other factors; however, our
ability to increase Commercial Lines net premiums written while maintaining or improving underwriting results may be affected by continuing
price competition and the current challenging economic environment. Over the past few years, we have noted a trend of weather-related
catastrophe and non-catastrophe losses that have been in excess of longer term averages. Accordingly, we have incorporated increased levels of
weather-related activity and loss trends into our expectations.

Personal Lines

Personal Lines net premiums written was $347.4 million in the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to $341.4 million in the three
months ended March 31, 2011, an increase of $6.0 million, or 1.8%. The factors contributing to this modest increase were higher rates in both
our homeowners and personal automobile lines and an increase in policies in force of 4.8% in our target growth states. These increases were
partially offset by our continued exposure management actions that focus on driving profit improvement through both rate increases and more
selective portfolio management.

Net premiums written in the personal automobile line of business increased by 0.9%, resulting primarily from rate increases. These increases
were partially offset by a decline in policies in force of 2.3%, primarily as a result of fewer policies in force in Massachusetts, New York, and
Michigan, which we attribute to more selective portfolio management and rate increases we have implemented despite the competitive pricing
environment. Net premiums written in the homeowners line of business increased 3.8%, resulting primarily from rate increases, partially offset
by a decline in policies in force of 0.2%.

Personal Lines underwriting profit for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $4.2 million, compared to $6.4 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2011, a decrease of $2.2 million. This was primarily due to unfavorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves,
partially offset by decreased non-catastrophe weather-related loss and LAE claims activity. Unfavorable development on prior years� loss and
LAE reserves for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $3.8 million, compared to favorable development of $14.1 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2011, a change of $17.9 million. Catastrophe losses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 were $23.0 million,
compared to $22.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011, an increase of $0.8 million.

Personal Lines underwriting profit, excluding prior year loss and LAE reserve development and catastrophes, was $31.0 million in the three
months ended March 31, 2012, compared to $14.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011. This $16.5 million increase in
non-catastrophe current accident year results was primarily due to decreases in non-catastrophe weather-related loss and LAE claims activity in
our personal automobile and homeowners lines.

Although we have been able to obtain rate increases in our Personal Lines markets and believe that this ability will continue, our ability to
maintain and increase Personal Lines net written premium and to maintain and improve underwriting results may be affected by price
competition, recent weather-related losses, and regulatory and legal developments. Over the past few years, we have noted a trend of
weather-related catastrophe and non-catastrophe losses that have been in excess of longer term averages. Accordingly, we have incorporated
increased levels of weather-related activity and loss trends into our expectations. Our rate actions could adversely affect our ability to increase
our policies in force and new business. There is no assurance that we will be able to maintain our current level of production or maintain or
increase rates. In addition, as we implement various measures to terminate our relationship with certain agencies as part of our partner agent
strategy and ongoing exposure management, personal lines net written premium could modestly decline in 2012.

Chaucer

Chaucer�s net premiums written was $200.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012. By line of business, Chaucer�s net premiums
written were comprised of 29.2% marine and aviation, 22.7% U.K. motor, 14.8% property, 11.7% energy and 21.6% casualty and other lines.
This mix of business was driven and supported by our specialist underwriting strategy which is focused on actively managing the premium
portfolio and risk exposures. Casualty and other lines are primarily comprised of Chaucer�s specialist and international liability lines of business.

Chaucer�s underwriting profit for the three months ended March 31, 2012 was $14.7 million. Catastrophe losses for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 were $6.5 million, principally due to the U.S. tornadoes. Favorable development on prior years� loss and LAE reserves for the
three months ended March 31, 2012 was $21.7 million.

Chaucer�s underwriting loss, excluding prior year loss and LAE development and catastrophes, was $0.5 million in the three months ended
March 31, 2012. Current quarter underwriting results include several large single loss events impacting the quarter primarily in the marine and
property lines of business. Underwriting expenses of $85.9 million represented 36.2% of earned premium.
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We have achieved, and expect to continue to achieve, rate increases for a majority of Chaucer lines in 2012. Recent natural catastrophe losses,
particularly those affecting the U.S., New Zealand, Japan and Thailand, have triggered property rate rises in the majority of catastrophe-exposed
territories. Policy terms and conditions are improving in our energy portfolio, as markets respond to losses in 2011. Within our marine line of
business, hull and liability rates are also increasing. The market conditions in our casualty and aviation businesses remain challenging, with
over-capacity affecting pricing. In our U.K. motor business, we currently expect limited growth, as rate increases moderate to a level that
approximates claims inflation following significant price increases since 2010. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain or
increase our rates in light of economic and regulatory conditions in our markets.
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Other Property and Casualty

Other Property and Casualty segment loss was $1.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to a profit of $1.3 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2011. The $2.5 million decrease is primarily due to lower net investment income.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The table below provides a reconciliation of the gross beginning and ending reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (including
Chaucer with respect to the three month period ended March 31, 2012) as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Gross loss and LAE reserves, beginning of period $ 5,760.3 $ 3,277.7
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 1,931.8 1,115.5

Net loss and LAE reserves, beginning of period 3,828.5 2,162.2

Net incurred losses and LAE in respect of losses
occurring in:
Current year 678.6 539.5
Prior years (17.2) (28.5) 

Total incurred losses and LAE 661.4 511.0

Net payments of losses and LAE in respect of losses
occurring in:
Current year 161.9 179.4
Prior years 509.3 302.3

Total payments 671.2 481.7

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 19.4 -  

Net reserve for losses and LAE, end of period 3,838.1 2,191.5
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 1,989.2 1,123.9

Gross reserve for losses and LAE, end of period $ 5,827.3 $ 3,315.4
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The table below summarizes the gross reserve for losses and LAE by line of business.

(in millions) March 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

Workers� Compensation $ 550.3 $ 544.7
Commercial Automobile 243.8 234.9
Commercial Multiple Peril 565.9 550.0
AIX 245.5 239.6
Other Commercial 346.6 360.1

Total Commercial 1,952.1 1,929.3

Personal Automobile 1,350.6 1,366.3
Homeowners and Other 135.1 131.9

Total Personal 1,485.7 1,498.2

Total Chaucer 2,389.5 2,332.8

Total loss and LAE reserves $ 5,827.3 $ 5,760.3

Other Commercial lines are primarily comprised of our professional liability, general liability, umbrella, and marine lines. Included in the above
table, in the Chaucer segment, are $298.5 million and $302.8 million of reserves related to Chaucer�s Syndicate 4000, consisting of financial and
professional liability lines written in 2008 and prior as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Also included in the above
table, primarily in Other Commercial lines, are $58.5 million and $59.8 million of asbestos and environmental reserves as of March 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Prior Year Development

Loss and LAE reserves for claims incurred in prior years developed favorably by $17.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012
compared to favorable development of $28.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012, a decrease of $11.3 million. These amounts for
2012 include favorable development of $21.7 million for Chaucer, partially offset by unfavorable development of $3.8 million and $0.5 million,
for Personal Lines and Commercial Lines, respectively. The primary drivers of reserve development for the three months ended March 31, 2012
were as follows:

� Lower than expected losses in Chaucer�s lines of business as follows:

§ marine and aviation lines, primarily in the 2007 and 2008 accident years,

§ energy line, primarily in the 2009 and 2010 accident years, and

§ property line, primarily in the 2011 accident year.

� Higher than expected losses within our personal automobile line, primarily related to liability coverage in the 2011 accident year.
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� Within other commercial lines, higher than expected losses in our surety line was partially offset by lower than expected losses in our
marine lines.

� Higher than expected losses within our commercial automobile line, primarily related to liability coverage in the 2011 accident year.

� Partially offsetting the unfavorable development within Commercial Lines was lower than expected losses within our commercial
multiple peril line related to the 2008 through 2011 accident years.
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The primary drivers for reserve development during the three months ended March 31, 2011 were as follows:

� Lower than expected losses within our personal automobile line across all coverages, primarily related to the 2008 through 2010
accident years.

� Lower than expected losses within the commercial multiple peril line, related to the 2005, 2009 and 2010 accident years.

� Lower than expected losses within the workers� compensation line, primarily related to the 2004 through 2009 accident years.

� Within our other commercial lines, our commercial umbrella line related to the 2008 and 2010 accident years contributed to the
favorable development, partially offset by unfavorable development in our surety line, primarily related to the 2009 and 2010
accident years.

Investments

Investment Results

Net investment income increased $8.4 million, or 13.9%, to $68.8 million for the first quarter of 2012, primarily due to the acquisition of
Chaucer and its related assets and investment income. Average pre-tax earned yield on fixed maturities for the U.S. domiciled companies was
5.21% and 5.28% for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Chaucer�s average pre-tax earned yield on fixed maturities
was 2.17% for the three months ended March 31, 2012. We expect average investment yields to continue to decline as new money rates remain
at historically low levels.

Investment Portfolio

We held cash and investment assets diversified across several asset classes, as follows:

March 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(dollars in millions)

Carrying

Value

% of Total
Carrying

Value
Carrying

Value

% of Total
Carrying

Value

Fixed maturities, at fair value $ 6,470.6 84.6% $ 6,284.7 83.3%
Equity securities, at fair value 334.1 4.4    246.4 3.3   
Cash and cash equivalents 628.3 8.2    820.4 10.9   
Other investments 212.8 2.8    190.2 2.5   

Total cash and investments $ 7,645.8 100.0% $ 7,541.7 100.0%

Cash and Investments

Total cash and investments increased $104.1 million, or 1.4%, for the three months ended March 31, 2012, of which fixed maturities increased
$185.9 million, equities increased $87.7 million and cash and cash equivalents decreased $192.1 million. Fixed maturities increased due to a
shift from cash into fixed maturities and from market value appreciation. Equity securities increased primarily from additional purchases of
publicly traded, dividend-yielding stocks.
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Our fixed maturity portfolio is comprised of corporate securities, taxable and tax-exempt municipal securities, residential mortgage-backed
securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities, foreign government securities, U.S. government securities and asset-backed securities.
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The following table provides information about the investment types of our fixed maturities portfolio:

March 31, 2012
(in millions)

Investment Type
Amortized

Cost Fair Value

Net

Unrealized
Gain

Change in Net
Unrealized for the

period

U.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 224.4 $ 231.0  $ 6.6 $ (1.0)     
Foreign government 273.3 273.8  0.5 0.6      
Municipals:
Taxable 786.2 853.3  67.1 8.7      
Tax exempt 147.1 151.7  4.6 (0.5)     
Corporate 3,345.9 3,545.6  199.7 42.3      
Asset-backed:
Residential mortgage-backed 778.1 811.4  33.3 0.8      
Commercial mortgage-backed 373.1 387.4  14.3 2.8      
Asset-backed 213.1 216.4  3.3 (0.3)     

Total fixed maturities $ 6,141.2 $ 6,470.6  $ 329.4 $ 53.4      

Our net unrealized gains on fixed maturities increased $53.4 million to $329.4 million at March 31, 2012, compared to $276.0 million at
December 31, 2011.

Amortized cost and fair value by rating category were as follows:

March 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(dollars in millions)

NAIC Designation

Rating Agency

Equivalent

Designation
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value

% of Total
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value

% of Total
Fair

Value

                    1 Aaa/Aa/A $ 4,425.3 $ 4,641.8 71.7% $ 4,325.1 $ 4,510.7 71.8% 
                    2 Baa 1,372.0 1,470.2 22.7 1,338.7 1,419.7 22.6
                    3 Ba 144.2 154.3 2.4 151.2 160.0 2.5
                    4 B 129.4 134.0 2.1 134.5 136.4 2.2
                    5 Caa and lower 58.6 58.3 0.9 47.1 44.7 0.7
                    6 In or near default 11.7 12.0 0.2 12.1 13.2 0.2

Total fixed maturities $ 6,141.2 $ 6,470.6 100.0% $ 6,008.7 $ 6,284.7 100.0% 

Based on ratings by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (�NAIC�), approximately 94% of the fixed maturity portfolio consisted
of investment grade securities at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. The quality of our fixed maturity portfolio remains strong based on
ratings, capital structure position, support through guarantees, underlying security, issuer diversification and yield curve position.

Commercial mortgage-backed securities (�CMBS�) constitute $387.4 million of our invested assets, of which approximately 12% is fully defeased
with U.S. government securities. The portfolio is seasoned, with approximately 51% of our CMBS holdings from pre-2005 vintages, 14% from
the 2005 vintage, 7% from the 2007 vintage, 4% from the 2006 vintage, and 24% from 2010 and later vintages. The CMBS portfolio is of high
quality, with approximately 70% being AAA rated, 28% rated AA or A and 2% rated Baa. The CMBS portfolio has a weighted average
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loan-to-value ratio of 72% and credit enhancement of approximately 30% as of March 31, 2012.

Our municipal bond portfolio constitutes approximately 13% of invested assets at March 31, 2012 and is 99% investment grade, without regard
to any insurance enhancement. Currently, approximately 28% of the municipal bond portfolio has an insurance enhancement. The portfolio is
well diversified by geography, sector and source of payment, and consists primarily of taxable securities. Approximately 60% of the portfolio is
invested in revenue bonds and 40% in general obligation bonds. Revenue bonds are backed by the revenue stream generated by the services
provided by the issuer, while general obligation bonds are backed by the authority that issued the debt and are secured by the taxing powers of
those authorities.

In accordance with Lloyd�s operating guidelines, we are required to deposit funds at Lloyd�s to support our underwriting operations. These funds
are available only to fund claim obligations. These restricted assets consisted of approximately $410 million of fixed maturities and $69 million
of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2012. We also deposit funds with various state and governmental authorities. For a discussion of
our deposits with state and governmental authorities, see also Note 3 � �Investments� of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Our fixed maturity and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value. Financial instruments whose value is
determined using significant management judgment or estimation constitute less than 2% of the total assets we measured at fair value. See also
Note 7 � �Fair Value� of the Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

Although we expect to invest new funds primarily in investment grade fixed maturities, we have invested, and expect to continue to invest, a
portion of funds in common equity securities and below investment grade fixed maturities and other assets.

European sovereign and non-sovereign debt exposure

Our European fixed maturity credit exposure at March 31, 2012 was as follows:

Non -Sovereign
(in millions) Sovereign Foreign Agency Financial Non-Financial Total

Country:
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
United Kingdom $ 66.8 $ 66.9 $ -   $ -   $ 338.4 $ 340.4 $ 220.5 $ 230.5 $ 625.7 $ 637.8
Germany 5.9 5.9 53.8 53.9 0.2 0.2 69.5 72.6 129.4 132.6
Switzerland -   -   -   -   20.3 20.9 64.8 70.0 85.1 90.9
Spain -   -   -   -   46.1 46.1 31.7 32.7 77.8 78.8
France -   -   1.0 1.0 18.4 17.4 53.7 55.6 73.1 74.0
Supranationals -   -   68.4 68.5 -   -   -   -   68.4 68.5
The Netherlands -   -   13.0 13.0 38.5 38.7 9.1 10.6 60.6 62.3
Sweden -   -   1.0 1.0 12.3 12.8 13.0 13.3 26.3 27.1
Italy -   -   -   -   4.0 3.8 16.8 16.7 20.8 20.5
Belgium -   -   -   -   -   -   13.0 13.6 13.0 13.6
Luxembourg -   -   -   -   -   -   12.7 12.9 12.7 12.9
Portugal -   -   -   -   -   -   10.8 10.1 10.8 10.1
Norway -   -   2.8 2.8 2.6 2.7 3.2 3.4 8.6 8.9
Ireland -   -   -   -   -   -   6.5 7.3 6.5 7.3
Denmark 1.0 1.0 -   -   -   -   1.4 1.4 2.4 2.4

Total $ 73.7 $ 73.8 $ 140.0 $ 140.2 $ 480.8 $ 483.0 $ 526.7 $ 550.7 $ 1,221.2 $ 1,247.7

Our sovereign debt totals $73.8 million, or 1.0% of investment assets, and is comprised only of the highly rated countries of the U.K., Germany
and Denmark. We have no sovereign debt of lower rated countries such as Greece, Portugal, Ireland, Italy and Spain. Our supranational and
foreign agency exposure totals $140.2 million, or 1.8% of investment assets, and primarily consists of debt securities from the highly rated
countries of Germany, the Netherlands and Norway. Exposure to European banks, excluding those that are based in the U.K., totals $142.6
million, or 1.9% of investment assets. Also, we hold money market funds totaling $123.8 million, or 1.6% of investment assets, which are
comprised of a well-diversified portfolio of short-term debt securities of predominately large financial institutions domiciled in highly rated
countries. The remainder of our European non-sovereign debt exposure, excluding the U.K., is $320.2 million, which represents 4.2% of
investment assets. Generally, these securities are high quality, large cap multi-national companies that are well diversified by sector, country and
issuer.

The table above represents all European countries in which we have exposure. We determined country exposures based on the country of
domicile for the ultimate parent company of the various issuers we hold; however, in light of the economic and financial inter-relatedness and
dependencies that exist among European countries and related financial systems, economic turmoil in one country could trigger a contagion
effect on other countries. We believe the quality of our European credit exposure remains sound based on ratings and issuer strength, position in
the capital structure, support through guarantees and partial government ownership by highly rated countries, diversity and quality of
non-financial issuers, blend of industry exposures, and yield curve position. We believe that we do not have meaningful indirect exposures in our
portfolio and we do not invest in credit derivatives.

We manage our country exposure using fundamental analysis coupled with relative value considerations. Investment decisions are based on the
combination of a top-down macroeconomic perspective and bottom-up credit security analysis. We monitor political and economic
developments; progress toward attainment of growth and budget targets; developments related to policy, reform and regulatory initiatives from
European officials; progress toward funding objectives, including the availability and cost of funding;
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outlook for credit ratings; ability of banks to meet increased regulatory capital standards, operate in a weakened macroeconomic environment,
and maintain adequate liquidity and sufficient access to capital to meet funding requirements; and contagion throughout the financial system as
evidenced by increased costs for interbank funding, lower prices for stocks and corporate bonds, as well as the availability of capital.

We actively manage our current holdings and seek securities with the best combination of credit strength and valuation. As we invest new
capital, we have a defensive bias based on the uncertainty regarding the strength and duration of economic recovery, downside risks as a result
of the European debt crisis and our belief that volatility will remain high based on these challenges. Accordingly, some areas of our focus
include providers of essential services or products best positioned to navigate the period of weak growth; industrials with greater international
exposure, either locally or via exports, particularly to the developing world, which we view more favorably based on higher growth assumptions
for emerging market economies; and financial institutions best positioned regarding asset quality, liquidity and capital adequacy.

Overall economic growth remains weak throughout the European region and is expected to have a dampening effect on earnings growth and
credit quality for some time. Volatility remains high and European sovereign risk premiums are elevated, although down from peak levels. Many
attribute the decline in risk premiums to the apparent success of the European Central Bank�s Long-Term Refinancing Operations (�LTRO�) since
it created enough demand to lower short-term government bond yields in early 2012. LTRO was designed to support banks by reducing systemic
risk and thereby bank and sovereign funding. However, sovereign risk premiums for certain countries have risen recently. Earlier in 2012,
several sovereign debt ratings were downgraded by Standard & Poor�s and Fitch, which had limited impact on sovereign yields since the bulk of
these actions were anticipated by investors. Moody�s currently is assessing all European bank ratings in light of the challenges they face as a
result of the crisis and expects to announce the outcome of its rating decisions in the near term. We do not anticipate that any such developments
will have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Other-than-Temporary Impairments

For the three months ended March 31, 2012, we recognized in earnings $1.9 million of other-than-temporary impairments (�OTTI�) on fixed
maturities, of which $1.5 million related to below investment grade corporate bonds that we intend to sell and $0.4 million related to estimated
credit losses on residential mortgage-backed and corporate securities. For the three months ended March 31, 2011, we recognized $1.4 million of
OTTI on fixed maturities and equity securities in earnings. OTTI on debt securities was $0.9 million, of which $0.7 million related to a below
investment grade municipal bond that we intended to sell and $0.2 million related to credit losses on investment grade residential
mortgage-backed securities. Additionally, we recognized OTTI on a common stock of $0.5 million.

Unrealized Losses

The following table provides information about our fixed maturities and equity securities that are in an unrealized loss position. (See also Note 6 �
�Investments� of the Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements.)

March 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

(in millions)

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Fixed maturities:
Investment grade:
12 months or less $ 10.6 $ 636.1 $ 27.1 $ 1,175.5
Greater than 12 months 9.3 93.5 14.3 108.9

Total investment grade fixed maturities 19.9 729.6 41.4 1,284.4

Below investment grade:
12 months or less 8.8 110.7 9.9 126.9
Greater than 12 months 2.0 12.4 3.7 14.7

Total below investment grade fixed maturities 10.8 123.1 13.6 141.6
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Equity securities:
12 months or less 6.5 88.6 8.8 87.2
Greater than 12 months 0.4 10.6 -   -   

Total equity securities 6.9 99.2 8.8 87.2

Total $ 37.6 $ 951.9 $ 63.8 $ 1,513.2

Gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities and equity securities decreased $26.2 million, or 41.1%, to $37.6 million at March 31, 2012,
compared to $63.8 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease in unrealized losses was primarily attributable to lower interest rates and
tightening of credit spreads across all sectors. At March 31, 2012, gross unrealized losses consist primarily of $18.7 million of corporate fixed
maturities, $7.7 million of mortgage-backed securities, $6.9 million of equity securities and $2.9 million in municipal securities.
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We view the gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities and equity securities as being temporary since it is our assessment that these securities
will recover in the near term, allowing us to realize their anticipated long-term economic value. With respect to gross unrealized losses on fixed
maturities, we do not intend to sell, nor is it more likely than not we will be required to sell, such debt securities before this expected recovery of
amortized cost (See also �Liquidity and Capital Resources�). With respect to equity securities, we have the intent and ability to retain such
investments for the period of time anticipated to allow for this expected recovery in fair value. The risks inherent in our assessment methodology
include the risk that, subsequent to the balance sheet date, market factors may differ from our expectations; the global economic recovery is less
robust than we expect or reverts to recessionary trends; we may decide to subsequently sell a security for unforeseen business needs; or changes
in the credit assessment or equity characteristics from our original assessment may lead us to determine that a sale at the current value would
maximize recovery on such investments. To the extent that there are such adverse changes, an OTTI would be recognized as a realized loss.
Although unrealized losses are not reflected in the results of financial operations until they are realized or deemed �other-than-temporary�, the fair
value of the underlying investment, which does reflect the unrealized loss, is reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table sets forth gross unrealized losses for fixed maturities by maturity period and for equity securities at March 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations,
with or without call or prepayment penalties, or we may have the right to put or sell the obligations back to the issuers.

(in millions)
March 31,

2012
December 31,

2011

Due in one year or less   $   1.4 $   1.9  
Due after one year through five years   3.9 18.9
Due after five years through ten years   7.3 11.2
Due after ten years   9.4 12.9

22.0 44.9
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities   8.7 10.1

Total fixed maturities 30.7 55.0
Equity securities   6.9   8.8

Total fixed maturities and equity securities   $ 37.6 $ 63.8

The carrying values of defaulted fixed maturity securities on non-accrual status at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were not material.
The effects of non-accruals compared with amounts that would have been recognized in accordance with the original terms of the fixed
maturities, were reductions in net investment income of $0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011. Any defaults in the
fixed maturities portfolio in future periods may negatively affect investment income.

Our investment portfolio and shareholders� equity can be significantly impacted by changes in market values of our securities. As the U.S. and
global financial markets and economies remain unstable, market volatility could increase and defaults on fixed income securities could occur. As
a result, we could incur additional realized and unrealized losses in future periods, which could have a material adverse impact on our results of
operations and/or financial position.

Fiscal and monetary policies in place, primarily in the United States and Europe, are supportive of moderate economic growth. The removal or
modification of these policies could have an adverse effect on issuers� level of business activity or liquidity, increasing the probability of future
defaults. While we may experience defaults on fixed income securities, particularly with respect to non-investment grade securities, it is difficult
to foresee which issuers, industries or markets will be affected. As a result, the value of our fixed maturity portfolio could change rapidly in
ways we cannot currently anticipate and we could incur additional realized and unrealized losses in future periods.
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Other Items

Net income also includes the following items:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions)
Commercial

Lines
Personal

Lines Chaucer

Other
Property and

Casualty
Discontinued
Operations Total

2012
Net realized investment gains $ 1.7 $ 1.2 $
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